
1
 

 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
September 8, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
a) Approval of the minutes of August 3, 2015 
b) Abatement of personal property taxes that were assessed in error 
c) Approval of an Utility Location Permit and Utility Easement for Maine Natural Gas on a 

section of Town Hall Place and its parking lot 
d) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, a MMA Safety Grant for two new office 

chairs 
e) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, a MMA Safety Grant for fire safety 

clothing  
f) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, the Emergency Management Planning 

Grant for 2015 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 

 Letter from the School Superintendent regarding repair project for Coffin Elementary 
and Brunswick Junior High School 

 Memo regarding a special permit issued by the Planning Board for the Grace Reformed 
Baptist Church 

 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Recognition of donation of a granite bench in honor of Numa and Jean McDuff  
b) Recognition of Brunswick’s designation of a Bicycle Friendly Community by the League of 

American Bicyclists 
c) Update on Pine Street Gate access to Brunswick Landing 
d) Update on Downtown Brunswick being considered for a Commercial Historic District 

nomination by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission 
e) Update on Zoning Rewrite Process 
f) Report on the repeal of Thomas Point Closure 
g) Update on 3 Lincoln Street 



2
 

 

h) Notice of property tax bills being mailed 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
89. The Town Council will hear public comments on an application for Special Amusement 

License, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
Special Amusement 
Bowdoin College 
D/B/A: Bowdoin Dining Services – Magee’s Pub   S. Catherine Longley 
David Saul Smith Union    

HEARING/ACTION 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
90. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 21, 2015, for 

“An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic 
Hot Water System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed 
$575,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance 
of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus 
any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 

91. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 21, 2015, for 
“An Ordinance Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and 
Revaluation of All Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located 
Within the Town of Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus 
any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and 
Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 

92. The Town Council will consider accepting a Department of Environmental Protection 
Stream Crossing Infrastructure Improvement Project conditional contract award in the 
amount of $93,800 for culvert work on River Road, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 

93. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Brunswick/Topsham Water 
District, and will take any appropriate action.  (Appointments Committee) 

ACTION 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION SHOULD 
CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521)



3
 

 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda 

September 8, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
a) Approval of the minutes of August 3, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
b) Abatement of personal property taxes that were assessed in error:  The Assessor has 

identified an account that was assessed in error and is requesting an abatement.  A copy of 
her memo is included in your packet. 

c) Approval of an Utility Location Permit and Utility Easement for Maine Natural Gas on a 
section of Town Hall Place and its parking lot:  These two items have been requested by 
MNG at Town Hall Place.  First, there is a utility permit to allow installation of a gas main 
on sections of Town Hall Place.  The second is an easement that would allow the main to 
cross the municipal parking lot between the Central Fire Station and “Cool as a Moose.”  
Copies of a memo from John Foster, the easement, and utility permit application are 
included in your packet. 

d) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, a MMA Safety Grant for two new office 
chairs:  This grant is to assist with funding for two office chairs that need replacement.  
They are approximately $500 each, and if the Town is successful in getting the grant the cost 
would be reduced to $170 each.  Staff will be available to answer any questions.  Copies of a 
memo from Jessica Factor, along with supporting materials, are included in your packet.  

e) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, a MMA Safety Grant for fire safety 
clothing:  This grant is to purchase twenty sets of wild land firefighting pants to be used in 
brush fire responses.  If awarded, this could reduce the already budgeted cost by up to 
$2,000.  Staff will be available to answer any questions.  A copy of a memo from the Fire 
Department is included in your packet. 

f) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, the Emergency Management Planning 
Grant for 2015:  The Fire Department is requesting permission to apply for this grant in the 
amount of $21,800 to help offset the cost of Emergency Management Planning, which the 
Town is required to do.  This is an annual grant the Fire Department has received the last 
several years.  Chief Brillant will be at the meeting to answer any questions.  A copy of his 
memo is included in your packet. 

 
The Council has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be 
considered separately. 
 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 Letter from the School Superintendent regarding the repair project for Coffin Elementary 
and Brunswick Junior High School:  A copy of the letter is included in your packet. 

 Memo regarding a special permit issued by the Planning Board for the Grace Reformed 
Baptist Church:  This is an acknowledgment of this action, and the Council has been 
previously informed.  A copy of the memo is included in your packet. 

 



4
 

 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Recognition of donation of a granite bench in honor of Numa and Jean McDuff:  This item 

is to acknowledge the donation of this bench by Monique Ford and the McDuff family in 
honor of their family members.  A copy of a memo from Peter Baecher is included in your 
packet. 

b) Recognition of Brunswick’s designation of a Bicycle Friendly Community by the League of 
American Bicyclists:  This item recognizes that Brunswick was selected as one of 350 
communities throughout the country to receive this award.  The Town had also been 
recognized in 2005 as Maine’s first nationally recognized Bicycle Friendly Community.  
Much of the credit for this designation is given to the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee’s work.  A copy of the newspaper article is included in your packet. 

c) Update on Pine Street access to Brunswick Landing:  This item is to give the Council and 
the public more information on this new access. 

d) Update on Downtown Brunswick being considered for a Commercial Historic District 
nomination by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission:  This item is to inform the 
Council and the public of a meeting on September 15, 2015, at 4:00 p.m. at the Curtis 
Memorial Library regarding this nomination.  A copy of the BDA letter is included in your 
packet. 

e) Update on Zoning Rewrite Process:  This item provides an update on this ordinance rewrite 
process.  A copy of a memo from Charles Frizzle is included in your packet.   

f) Report on the repeal of Thomas Point Closure:  This item is to inform the Council and the 
public of the issues surrounding the Marine Resource Committee’s decision to rescind this 
conservation closure.  The issue surrounds intertidal resource harvesting conflicts between 
the locally managed shellfishing industries and the state regulated bait worm industry.  
Copies of a memo from Dan Devereaux to the Council and letter to the Dept of Marine 
Resources are included in your packet. 

g) Update on 3 Lincoln Street:  This item provides an update on this 6 unit apartment building 
and its tenants after the building had been posted as unsafe for occupancy or use due to 
ongoing fire and life safety code deficiencies. 

h) Notice of property tax bills being mailed:   The Assessor has completed the tax commitment.   
The bills will be mailed out beginning Wednesday, September 9th and will continue through 
the end of the week. A copy of the tax rate information is included in your packet. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
89. This item is the required public hearing for a Special Amusement license for Magee’s 

Pub at Bowdoin College.  They are requesting to have bands, music, comedy, and 
games.  Copies of the public hearing notice and application are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Special Amusement License for Bowdoin College Magee’s Pub. 

 
 



5
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
90. This item is for the Council to consider setting a public hearing for September 21, 2015, 

for this draft ordinance.  The Town’s 2016‐20 Capital Improvement Program (CIP), 
adopted on May 28, 2015, recommends funding the replacement of boilers and related 
equipment at Brunswick High School. The replacement was scheduled to take place in 
the 2016‐17 fiscal year. The School Department is recommending that this project be 
moved to, and funded in, the current fiscal year.  The estimated cost of the project is 
$575,000.  The Department had originally planned to reconstruct the High School track 
in this year; however this project is being moved to a future year.  Copies of a memo 
from Manager Eldridge, relative pages from the CIP, a proposed bond ordinance, and a 
projected amortization schedule for the bonds are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to set a public hearing for September 21, 2015, on “An Ordinance Authorizing 
the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at 
Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any 
other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes 
in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.” 

 
91. This item is for the Council to consider setting a public hearing for September 21, 2015, 

for this draft ordinance.  The Town’s 2016‐20 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
recommends funding a complete revaluation of all taxable property at an estimated cost 
of $400,000, and funding it through bonds.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, 
relative pages from the CIP, a proposed bond ordinance, a projected amortization 
schedule for the bonds and a memo from the Assessor are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to set a public hearing for September 21, 2015, on “An Ordinance Authorizing 
the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All Taxable Real 
Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of Brunswick 
With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs authorized 
hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to 
Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized 
Hereunder.”  

 
92. This item is for the Council to consider taking action on this DEP grant.  The Town 

submitted a proposal to the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) for 
assistance with the replacement of a culvert on River Road that was destroyed by a flood 
in the fall of 2014.  The Town is being required, through the permitting process, to 
upgrade to a pipe arch, a far more expensive option than a traditional culvert.  On 
August 14th the Town was notified by DEP that we had been approved for assistance of 
$93,800.  To continue in this process, the Town Council needs to authorize staff to enter 
into a contract with the State of Maine in the amount of $93,800. Work on the project 
cannot begin until we receive the Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) permit that we 
applied for earlier this year.   Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge and the DEP 
notification are included in your packet. 



6
 

 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to authorize the Town Manager to enter into a contract with the State of Maine 
in the amount of $93,800 to be used to fund a culvert on River Road. 

 
93. This item is for the Council to consider nominations to the Brunswick/Topsham Water 

District.  In August, the Appointments Committee met and interviewed David Ivery and 
Richard Moll for two vacancies on this board with terms to expire on September 13, 
2018.  Copies of their applications are included in the packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
August 3, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. 
Perreault, Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, and John 
Richardson Jr. 
 
Councilors Absent:  None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Elin M. Gould, Deputy Town 
Clerk; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Julie Henze, Finance Director; Anna Breinich, 
Director of Planning and Development; Dan Devereaux, Marine Warden; Terry Goan, Police 
Officer; and TV video crew 
 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that 
the meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda:  To take up Item #83 after Item #88 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (This item was discussed at 7:01 p.m.) 

a) Approval of the Minutes of July 20, 2015  
b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for property depicted at Map U15 Lot 124 Sub 000 

Typ 000 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Quitclaim Deed for Item CA-(b) will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:02 p.m.) 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:03 p.m.) 
 
Councilor K. Wilson received an email with concerns about bicyclists not obeying the rules of 
the road.  She also received a concern about the condition of the pavement on Westminster 
Avenue; Manager Eldridge said the Public Works Director has responded to that person. 
 
Councilor Walker has received concerns about the shabby condition of the split rail fence at 
the Town Commons and the playground on Longfellow Avenue. Manager Eldridge said they 
are waiting for an insurance payment from a fire that occurred at the playground. 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:07 p.m.) 



Town Council Minutes 
August 3, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
Councilor Perreault reported on the Social Services Policy Task Force.   
 
Councilor Watson reported on the recent dedication of American Legion Post 20. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Nomination papers availability (This item was discussed at 7:12 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge gave a reminder that nomination papers are due by September 4, 2015. 

 
b) Update on train idling and layover facility (This item was discussed at 7:13 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge gave this update. 

 
(A copy of a memo from Manager Eldridge will be attached to the official minutes.) 

 
c) Solarize Brunswick RFP online and webpage active (This item was discussed at 7:14 

p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge announced the online presence of Solarize Brunswick. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 83 was taken up after Item 88. 

 
83.  The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for August 17, 2015, 

regarding “An Ordinance Authorizing the Planning, Design and Completion of 
Repairs to the Brunswick Junior High School and the Coffin Elementary School, 
the Acquisition of a 12 Classroom Modular Unit, and Site Work and Related 
Improvements, with Total Project Costs Not to Exceed Twelve Million, Five 
Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,550,000), Plus Other Authorized 
Costs, and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to 
Exceed Twelve Million, Five Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,550,000), 
Plus Other Authorized Costs,” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
(This item was discussed at 7:40 p.m.) 

 
Paul Perzanoski, Superintendent of Schools, and Paul Caron, School Department Director 
of Facilities, gave a PowerPoint Presentation about the needs that led to the proposed Bond 
Ordinance. 
 
Lyndon Keck, PDT Architects, talked about the age and state of the buildings. 
 
After a short recess, the meeting resumed at 8:18 p.m. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
August 3, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

A lengthy discussion followed the presentation.  All nine Councilor asked questions and made 
comments.  Responses were provided by Lyndon Keck, Architect, Paul Caron, Director of 
Facilities, School Board Chair William Thompson, and School Board member Rich Ellis. 
 
Chair Brayman opened the floor to public comments. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke against sending this bond ordinance to public hearing 
at this time. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to set a public hearing for 
August 17, 2015, regarding “An Ordinance Authorizing the Planning, Design and 
Completion of Repairs to the Brunswick Junior High School and the Coffin Elementary 
School, the Acquisition of a 12 Classroom Modular Unit, and Site Work and Related 
Improvements, with Total Project Costs Not to Exceed Twelve Million, Five Hundred 
and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,550,000), Plus Other Authorized Costs, and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed Twelve Million, 
Five Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,550,000), Plus Other Authorized Costs.”   
 
Councilor Perreault gave his reasons for supporting the School Board’s decision to move 
forward with this proposal. 
 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Harris, Councilor K. Wilson, Councilor Richardson, Councilor 
Walker, Councilor Watson, Councilor S. Wilson, and Chair Brayman all gave their reasons 
against the proposal and setting a public hearing on it at this time. 
 
VOTE ON THE MOTION: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to set a public hearing for 
August 17, 2015, regarding “An Ordinance Authorizing the Planning, Design and 
Completion of Repairs to the Brunswick Junior High School and the Coffin Elementary 
School, the Acquisition of a 12 Classroom Modular Unit, and Site Work and Related 
Improvements, with Total Project Costs Not to Exceed Twelve Million, Five Hundred 
and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,550,000), Plus Other Authorized Costs, and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed Twelve Million, 
Five Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,550,000), Plus Other Authorized Costs.”  
The motion failed with one  (1) yea.  Opposed: Councilor Watson, Councilor Walker, 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Brayman, Councilor Harris, Councilor Millett, 
Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Richardson. 
 
84.  The Town Council will consider accepting and expending a Safe Routes to School 

Crossings MDOT Grant in the amount of $100,000, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge explained this item. 
 
Rich Cromwell, Bike and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Co-Chair, spoke about the 
process. 



Town Council Minutes 
August 3, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to accept and expend a Safe 
Routes to School Crossings MDOT Grant in the amount of $100,000, with an additional 
town match of $25,000.   
 
Councilor Perreault listed the four intersections that will be addressed by the grant. 
 
VOTE ON THE MOTION: 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to accept and expend a Safe 
Routes to School Crossings MDOT Grant in the amount of $100,000, with an additional 
town match of $25,000.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a letter and map from the Bike and Pedestrian Advisory Committee will be 
attached to the official minutes.) 
 
85.  The Town Council will consider accepting and expending the 2016 Shore and 

Harbor Planning Grant Award in the amount of $15,900.00 for the Brunswick 
Mooring Field Opportunities project, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker) (This item was discussed at 7:18    
p.m.) 

 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to accept and expend the 2016 
Shore and Harbor Planning Grant Award in the amount of $15,900.00 for the 
Brunswick Mooring Field Opportunities project.   
 
Councilor S. Wilson explained the background of this project and grant. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked about the cost of the project.  Councilor Wilson responded that the 
cost will not exceed the amount received from the grant. 
 
VOTE ON THE MOTION: 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to accept and expend the 2016 
Shore and Harbor Planning Grant Award in the amount of $15,900.00 for the 
Brunswick Mooring Field Opportunities project.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Harbor Planning Grant Award letter and Agreement to Purchase Services will 
be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
86. The Town Council will consider accepting and expending a Coastal Community 

Grant for the Mare Brook Watershed and Community Engagement Project in 
the amount of $47,925.00, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor 
Walker) (This item was discussed at 7:23 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Walker explained this grant and the in-kind only match by the Town. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
August 3, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor Walker moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to accept and expend a Coastal 
Community Grant in the amount of $47,925.00 for the Mare Brook Watershed and 
Community Engagement Project.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Coastal Community Grant award letter and project proposal will be attached 
to the official minutes.) 
 
87. The Town Council will consider accepting ownership of property at Bay Bridge 

Landing from the MDOT, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor 
Watson) (This item was discussed at 7:27 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Watson gave the background and history of the property. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to accept ownership of the 
property, as described in the attached Governor’s Deed, at the Bay Bridge Landing, 
from the State of Maine.   
 
Councilor Millett, Councilor K. Wilson, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor Walker asked 
questions, to which Councilor Watson and Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
VOTE ON THE MOTION: 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to accept ownership of the 
property, as described in the attached Governor’s Deed, at the Bay Bridge Landing, 
from the State of Maine.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Opposed: Councilor 
Perreault. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Manager Eldridge, the previously recorded Deed of Conservation 
Easement, and the Governor’s Deed, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
88. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee)  
(This item was discussed at 7:38 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Millett made the following nominations: 
 
Cable TV Committee 
David Carpenter – reappointment for a term to expire 9/6/2018 
Marine Resource Committee 
Scott Hawkes – appointment as Commercial Harvester representative for a term to expire 
5/1/2018 
 
The Council supported the nominations with (9) yeas.   
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
August 3, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

The meeting adjourned at 10:03 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE MEETING 
CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Elin M. Gould  
Deputy Town Clerk 
August 4, 2015 
 
 
 
 

September 8, 2015 
__________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Council Chair



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

Brunswick, Maine 
John A. Foster, PE 
Town Engineer/Director PWD 
e-mail:  foster@brunswickme.org 

Public Works Department 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, Maine  04011 
(207) 725-6654  
FAX (207) 725-6655 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 TO: John Eldridge, Town Manager 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Director, PWD 

 DATE: August 21, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Utility Location Permit & Utility Easement 
 

Attached, for presentation to the Town Council is one application for a Utility Location 
Permit and a utility Easement received from Maine Natural Gas. 
 
Easement, Town Hall Place     Maine Natural Gas is seeking an easement to install a 2” 
natural gas main within the Municipal parking lot between the Central Fire Station and 
“Cool as a Moose”. The easement will extend an existing easement about 50 feet to the 
right of way line of Town Hall Place. 
 
In application ULP 2015-02, Town Hall Place   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the northerly sideline of Town Hall Place across Town Hall 
Place, thence easterly about 40 feet to a point in front of #9 Town Hall Place. 
Approximately 70 feet of 2” gas main.   
 
 
 
 
 
Brunswick Public Works Department has no objection to these underground utility lines 
as proposed, providing it is approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final location governed by the utility location permit is subject to 
adjustment, as determined necessary by the Town Engineer, to provide 
adequate clearance from any underground facilities located by field 
verification by each utility. 

2. All work is subject to compliance with the Town’s Street Opening and road 
restoration requirements. 

 
 



 
EASEMENT 

 
 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS That the Town of Brunswick, a 
municipality in the State of Maine (the “GRANTOR”), in consideration of One Dollar, ($1.00) 
and other valuable consideration, paid by Maine Natural Gas Corporation, a Maine corporation 
having a mailing address of 9 Industrial Parkway, PO Box 99, Brunswick, ME  04011 (the 
“GRANTEE”), the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby give, grant, bargain, 
sell and convey, unto the GRANTEE a permanent and perpetual easement (the “Easement”) for 
the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, operating, replacing, reconstructing, 
abandoning or removing a pipeline, which pipeline shall be and remain the property of 
GRANTEE, for the transmission and distribution of natural gas over, under and across a portion 
of land of GRANTOR situated in the Town of Brunswick, County of Cumberland, State of 
Maine described in a deed to the Inhabitants of the Town of Brunswick dated June 17, 1869 and 
recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 368, Page 570 and in a deed to 
the Inhabitants of the Town of Brunswick dated October 16, 1869 and recorded in said Registry 
of Deeds in Book 372, Page 417.  Said portion of land, hereinafter being referred to as 
“EASEMENT AREA A”, is more particularly described as follows: 

Being a strip of land six (6) feet in width as measured from the centerline of said pipeline to be 
located in lands of GRANTOR now used as a municipal parking lot which lands are generally 
bordered by Cumberland Street, Maine Street, Pleasant Street and Union Street, reference deeds 
recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 2173, Page 145, in Book 2838, 
Page 64, in Book 372, Page 417 and in Book 368, Page 570.  Said ”EASEMENT AREA A” is 
bounded to the north by the southerly terminus of a six-foot wide easement from GRANTOR to 
GRANTEE dated October 8, 2009 recorded in said Registry of Deeds in Book 27345, Page 248 
and shown on a plan attached to said deed entitled “Exhibit A, Maine Natural Gas, Gas Main 
Inventory Mapping, Brunswick, Maine, Gas Main Easement, Town Hall Place” (“Prior 
Easement”) and bounded to the south by a public way now known as Town Hall Place.  Said 
”EASEMENT AREA A” being as depicted and extending the Prior Easement as shown on a plan 
entitled ”Figure :1, Easement Exhibit, Maine Natural Gas Corporation & Town of Brunswick, 
Town Hall Place, Brunswick, Cumberland County, State of Maine”, dated July 2015, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as “Exhibit A”.    

 The Easement includes, and the GRANTEE shall have, all other rights and benefits 
necessary or convenient for the full enjoyment of the use of the rights herein granted including, 
but not limited to, the right to remove any obstructions which might interfere with the use of the 
Easement.   
 
 Provided, however, that any damage to the property of the GRANTOR, caused by the 
GRANTEE in the exercise of the rights under the Easement shall be the responsibility of the 
GRANTEE and shall be repaired no later than thirty (30) days from the date of said damage. 
 
 GRANTOR shall not excavate, fill or place structures on the Easement Area without 
obtaining GRANTEE’s prior written consent.   



 
 If the location of the Easement interferes with the GRANTOR’s use and enjoyment of his 
property, then upon the request by the GRANTOR, GRANTEE shall remove the pipe and 
relocate the Easement so that it would not interfere with the GRANTOR’s use of GRANTOR’s 
property, in which case GRANTOR shall designate another replacement Easement Area on said 
property within which GRANTEE shall have all rights herein granted in order to allow for the 
extension of the Prior Easement. 
 
 The rights, title and privileges herein granted may, in whole or in part, be sold, leased, 
assigned, pledged, and mortgaged, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives. 
 
 The failure of GRANTEE to exercise any rights herein conveyed in any single instance 
shall not be considered a waiver of such rights and shall not bar GRANTEE from exercising  any 
such rights, or if necessary, seeking an appropriate remedy in conjunction with such rights. 
 
 The GRANTOR understands and agrees that the person securing the grant is without 
authority from GRANTEE to make any agreement with respect to the subject matter not herein 
expressed. 
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF GRANTOR has signed this instrument this___ day of 
_________, 2015. 
 
 GRANTOR: 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

 
____________________________ 
Witness 

 
 
By: ____________________________ 
       Name: 
       Its: 
 

  
STATE OF MAINE 

County of Cumberland, ss.       ___________, 2015 

 Personally appeared the above-named ________________________, ________________ 
for the Town of Brunswick, and acknowledged the foregoing to be his/her free act and deed and 
the free act and deed of said municipality. 
 

        
Notary Public 
My commission expires:     

 
 
 





jhiggins
Text Box
ULP2015-02





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 









 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



                                                                                                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 21 TOWN HALL PLACE 
KEN BRILLANT, CHIEF BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 
JEFF EMERSON, DEPUTY CHIEF TELEPHONE 207-725-5541 
DONALD KOSLOSKY, DEPUTY CHIEF FAX # 207-725-6638 
                                                                                                                                               WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG 
 
 
To: John Eldridge, Town Manager 
From: Don Koslosky, Deputy Chief 
Ref: MMA Grant request 
Date: August 25, 2015 
 
The Fire Department is looking for permission to apply for a grant through Maine 
Municipal Association Safety Enhancement Grant for the amount of $3,500.00. This 
grant is 2/3 matching, with up to $2,000.00 reimbursement through MMA. 
 
Brunswick Fire Department is looking to purchase twenty sets of wild land firefighting 
pants for use during wild land response. The gear is used daily by our department on 
brush fire responses.  Once awarded the grant, we have one year to expend the funds. 
The money for the gear is already budgeted, as we replace a yearly basis. 
 
The goal is to help reduce injuries by providing the right gear that meets NFPA 1977 
standard for protective clothing for wild land firefighting. The addition of these wild land 
pants will lessen the potential for injuries by providing the right protection when 
fighting forest fires. They are lighter, less cumbersome, which will give more agility to 
the firefighter when fighting these types of fires. Currently our Firefighters have to wear 
structural gear on Brush fires. This creates high heat issues and endangers the health of 
our Firefighters. 
 
 
  
 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
Incorporated 1739 

Brunswick Fire Department 
 

“Working Today for a Safer Tomorrow” 
 
 

  
 

http://www.brunswickme.org/


 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA -F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



To:  John Eldridge, Manager 

From:  Ken Brillant, Fire Chief 

Ref:  EMP Grant 

Date:  8-20-15 

 

I’m requesting permission to submit an application for this year’s Emergency Management Planning 
Grant.  We have been the recipient of this grant funding for the past eight years.  The grant previously 
would roll over from year to year, but new requirements require us to re-submit annually.  The focus of 
this program is to develop and enhance local emergency management capacity. This includes such 
functions as planning, training, exercises, public outreach and enhancement and upkeep of facilities 
and equipment. 
 
The EMP grant requires a 50% match, which can be cash or in kind (donated time or resources, or 
related costs paid out).  We have been using the ARES/ CERT team training as our in kind match. 
 
The grant request would cover the following: 
 

1.  15% of the Fire Chief’s salary and benefits or approximately 6 hours per week 
2. Related Communications expenses.  (Phones and Wireless MIFI)  
3. Miscellaneous emergency supplies 

 
 
 
Our request is for approximately $21,800 with an in kind match of approximately $41,080. 
 



 
 

 
Correspondence 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 

















 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 











 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 







 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMO 
 
DATE:  September 2, 2015 
TO:  John Eldridge, Town Manager 
FROM: Charlie Frizzle, Chair of ZORC 
RE:  Update on status of the Zoning Ordinance rewrite 
 
As you are probably aware, the second draft of the new Zoning Ordinance was received in late 
July.  After allowing a short time for the Planning Department staff to conduct a quick review, 
the new draft was placed on the Town’s website, and the Zoning Ordinance Rewrite Committee 
(ZORC) scheduled a work session for August 26.  Prior to this session, Anna Breinich produced 
a five page document, which provided a listing of the significant changes incorporated in the 
draft #2 ordinance.  This listing was the primary focus of the Committee’s discussion on August 
26.  The listing contained a few items that required further discussion by the ZORC for 
consistency with our previous decisions, but more importantly it identified a significant number 
of items that needed further staff work to finalize. 
 
Of significant concern among the areas needing additional staff work is the area regarding 
stormwater management.  The State, without any prior notice, has recently issued new 
amendments to Chapters 500 and 501 regarding stormwater management.  Our new ordinance 
must now be reviewed for compliance with these new regulations.  Given the volume and 
importance of this staff work, the ZORC decided not to meet again until late September so as to 
allow some time for the staff to catch up. 
 
The next ZORC meeting is now being scheduled (currently looking at Wednesday, September 
23, 1:00 p.m. to 4 p.m.).  The most important agenda item for this meeting will be to discuss and 
schedule a series of formal public meetings regarding this second draft of the new Ordinance.   
Anna Breinich will provide the Council with an updated schedule after this meeting occurs and 
the schedule is set. 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT – F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
Town of Brunswick, Maine 

INCORPORATED 1739 

MARINE RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

85 PLEASANT STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011 

TELEPHONE 207-725-5521  FAX 207-725-6627 

Email – ddevereaux@brunswickpd.org 

 

 

Chairman 

Mark Latti 

 

Vice Chairman  

Tony Youdsnukis 

 

www.brunswickme.org/departments/police 

 

          September 2, 2015 

 

To: Brunswick Town Council 

From: Daniel R. Devereaux MRO/HM  

CC: John Eldridge, Town Manager, Mark Latti, Brunswick Marine Resources Chair 

 

RE: Thomas Point Beach Shellfish Growing Area Conservation Efforts 

 

Dear Town Councilors, 

 

I have enclosed a letter I sent to the Maine Department of Marine Resources on August 21
st
 explaining a 

recent Brunswick Marine Resources Committee decision to rescind a conservation closure on the 

Thomas Point Beach shellfish growing area (attached). 

 

Under current authority municipalities with approved shellfish management programs have jurisdiction to 

manage the intertidal shellfish populations, this has been a long standing authority granted under MRSA 

Title 12 Section 6671.  Brunswick has been actively involved in shellfish conservation and management 

for nearly a half century. In doing so Brunswick has been one of the leading producers of softshell clams 

and quahogs in our region.   

 

Over the years there has been several arguments pertaining to intertidal resource harvesting conflicts 

between the locally managed shellfishing industries and the state regulated bait worm industry.  With this 

said there have been several unsuccessful attempts to establish regulation and law that provides a more 

equitable use between the two industries.  I suspect that these efforts will continue as I’m currently 

attending meetings with other municipalities from the St. George River, that are also experiencing intense 

bait worm harvesting in and around their valuable shellfish seed bed areas.  

 

It has been scientifically proven that both clam and worm harvesting techniques have a shellfish mortality 

rate of 33% (Dr. Brian Beal).  With this said you can understand the most recent decision by the 

Brunswick Marine Resource Committee to rescind the conservation closure and allow shellfishing in this 

area.  During public testimony it was blatantly clear that excessive worm harvesting was ongoing in the 

conservation area. Staff has witnessed as many as 30 bait worm harvesters in the area.  The damage to 

the area was occurring regardless of shellfishing harvesting and therefore the decision was made to 

rescind any conservation efforts in this area. 

 

If you have further questions please feel free to contact me.   

 

Respectfully Submitted,   

    

 



 
 

 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

MARINE RESOURCES & HARBOR MANAGEMENT 

85 PLEASANT STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011 

TELEPHONE 207-725-5521  FAX 207-725-6663 

Email – ddevereaux@brunswickpd.org 

 
 

 

 

Daniel R. Devereaux 

Marine Resource Officer 

Harbormaster 

 

www.brunswickme.org/departments/police 

 

           

August 21, 2015 
 

Maine Department of Marine Resources 

Attn: Pete Thayer, Biologist  

PO Box 8  
West Boothbay Harbor, Maine 04575  

 

RE: Repeal of Thomas Point Beach Closure 
 

Dear Mr. Thayer, 

 
At the August 20

th
 2015 meeting of the Brunswick Marine Resources Committee a public hearing was 

held, after lengthy public comment it was decided unanimously by the BMRC to repeal the closure on 

Thomas Beach shellfish growing area that was enacted in the Spring of 2015. 

 
The BMRC decision was based on the following. 

 

The size distribution survey conducted by town staff on August 4
th
 indicates that approximately 88% of 

all the clams in the area are undersized, 51% of those clams ranging in size of 35mm-45mm, typically the 

BMRC legal vs. sublegal ratio protocols to open an area are 60%-40%. Using BMRC standard protocols 

this are area would remain closed until next summer at which time those undersized softshell clams will 

have reach market size, allowing harvesters nearly triple their harvest.  Obviously, this is not the case 
under the current circumstances that exist at the Thomas Point Beach shellfish growing area.    

 

Thomas Point Beach has received natural heavy sets of softshell clam seed over the last two years (since 
the green crab inundation).  This not an uncommon occurrence in this area, as Thomas Point Beach has 

been defined as one of the most prolific softshell clam seed bed areas in our  region and state. West Bath, 

Phippsburg, & Harpswell have all used Thomas Point Beach as a seed source over the years.  Working 
cooperatively with area towns, Brunswick has been able to help other towns stabilize their local softshell 

clam resources using the seed collected from Thomas Point Beach.    

 

Since the spring shellfish conservation closure it has been repeatedly harvested by bait worm harvesters, 
causing staggering disruption and mortality of seed clams. Knowing that this excessive bait worm 

harvesting is continually being allowed by DMR, it has forced the BMRC to abandoned any and all 

conservation efforts at Thomas Point and lift the closure to allow shellfishermen an opportunity to harvest 
those legal shellfish before they are displaced by the excessive harvesting. Town staff will continue bi 

weekly evaluations; however there is no intention to rotate this area into conservation closure based on 

size distribution any longer. It’s pointless to do so, as it is only undermined by the continued intense bait 
worm harvesting.   

 

The Department’s failure to properly manage the existing bait worm industry has led and will lead to loss 

of several thousands of bushels of upcoming harvestable softshell clams, causing loss of income and 
hardship for local shellfishermen and forcing Brunswick to abandoned conservation efforts at Thomas  



 

 

Letter BMRC decision Thomas Point Beach pg2 

 
 

Point Beach and turn it back into a free for all. It is very likely that the continued harvesting intensity 

(worms & clams now) at Thomas Point Beach will likely lead to loss of local shellfishing jobs long term.  

 
Please understand that the BMRC and local shellfishermen stated that if it was not for bait worm 

harvesting being allowed, Thomas Point Beach would remain closed and we would work to relocate seed 

to other areas in the region.  If you have any questions or concerns please feel free to contact me.  
 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 

 

Daniel R. Devereaux MRO/HM 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Cc Mark Latti, Chairman BMRC 

 John Eldridge, Town Manger 
 Brunswick Town Council 

 Brunswick Marine Resources Committee 

 Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission 
 Pat Keliher, DMR Commissioner 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - G 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - H 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 89 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 











 
 

 
ITEM 90 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town’s	2016‐20	Capital	Improvement	Program	(CIP),	adopted	on	May	28,	2015,	recommends	
funding	the	replacement	of	boilers	and	related	equipment	at	Brunswick	High	School.		The	
replacement	was	scheduled	to	take	place	in	the	2016‐17	fiscal	year.		The	School	Department	is	
recommending	that	this	project	be	moved	to,	and	funded	in,	the	current	fiscal	year.		The	estimated	
cost	of	the	project	is	$575,000.		The	department	had	originally	planned	to	reconstruct	the	High	
School	track	in	this	year,	however	it	is	not	prepared	to	move	forward	on	that	project	at	this	time.	
	
Attached	please	find	the	following:	
	

 Relevant	pages	from	the	CIP	
 Memorandum	and	attachments	prepared	by	the	School	Department	explaining	the	project	
 A	bond	ordinance	authorizing	the	project	and	the	issuance	of	bonds	to	fund	it.	
 An	estimated	debt	service	scheduled	that	assumes	that	the	bonds	will	be	amortized	over	ten	

years.	
	
Paul	Perzanoski	will	be	in	attendance	at	the	September	8th	Council	meeting	to	explain	the	project	
and	answer	questions.		Should	the	Council	agree	to	authorize	the	project,	it	needs	to	set	a	public	
hearing	on	the	bond	ordinance.	



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
FROM:	 Paul	Perzanoski	 	 	 Paul	A.	J.	Caron	
	 Superintendent	of	Schools	 	 Director	of	Facilities	&	Transportation	
	 Brunswick	School	Department		 Brunswick	School	Department		
	
DATE:	 August	28,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Replacement	
	
	
	
The	Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Replacement	project	has	been	in	the	Capital	Improvement	
Program	for	several	years.		This	project	is	to	replace	the	original	boiler	plant	equipment	with	three	
modern	energy‐efficient	boilers	designed	to	run	in	the	90%	efficiency	range.	The	current	system	is	a	
dual	fuel	boiler	which,	because	of	its	design	for	multiple	fuels,	cannot	operate	at	the	potential	
efficiency	of	today's	systems.			Because	of	its	inability	to	operate	efficiently,	one	of	the	boilers	is	kept	
off	for	most	of	the	year	and	this	causes	condensation	to	the	point	that	it	has	been	cited	for	several	
years	by	the	boiler	inspector.	He	fears	that	the	corrosion	will	ultimately	lead	to	failure	of	the	boiler.		
	
The	project	also	includes	the	replacement	of	the	domestic	hot	water	system	to	a	more	efficient	
system.	Currently,	due	to	the	configuration	of	the	heaters	and	the	large	size	of	the	tank,	far	too	much	
hot	water	is	being	heated	during	school	hours	and	especially	overnight	and	during	non‐school	days.	
																																														
The	BHS	Boiler	Replacement	project	was	originally	planned	for	the	2016‐17	fiscal	year,	and	the	Track	
project	was	expected	to	be	completed	in	the	2015‐16	fiscal	year.		As	the	Track	project	has	been	
delayed	for	further	study,	the	School	Board	has	decided	to	switch	the	projects	and	pursue	the	BHS	
Boiler	project	in	fiscal	year	2015‐16.	
	
Attached	is	a	proposal	from	Siemens	to	complete	the	project	for	a	cost	of	$575,000.	
	
In	the	CIP	the	BHS	Boiler	project	was	anticipated	to	be	funded	through	bonds.		We	request	that	the	
Town	Council	allow	this	project	to	go	forward	in	2015‐16,	and	approve	the	necessary	funding.		
	
	

























P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

T
O

T
A

L
F

U
N

D
IN

G
 

I.
  P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

C
ap

it
al

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts

F
ac

il
it

ie
s 

- 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

M
cL

el
la

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

1,
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
17  

L
ib

ra
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
U

pg
ra

de
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
2,

50
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

E
m

er
so

n 
F

ir
e 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

oi
le

r 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f 
(p

ar
ti

al
)

16
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

B
JH

S
 A

ir
 Q

ua
li

ty
45

4,
08

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
19  

B
H

S
 B

oi
le

r 
P

la
nt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

3,
03

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

3,
03

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 F

ac
il

it
ie

s 
- 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
1,

77
0,

08
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

   

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

21  
C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
li

gh
ts

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

li
gh

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
M

.D
.O

.T
N

an
cy

/P
at

ri
ci

a/
P

ie
rc

e 
R

ec
on

st
r

58
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

A
nd

ro
sc

og
gi

n 
B

ik
e 

P
at

h 
D

es
ig

n
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
23  

P
in

e 
S

tr
ee

t a
cc

es
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s

25  
R

iv
er

w
al

k
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
M

.D
.O

.T
R

iv
er

w
al

k
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

T
ot

al
 I

n
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

62
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

16
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1,
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

C
ap

it
al

 A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
s

27  
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
29  

P
&

R
 S

id
ew

al
k 

tr
ac

to
r/

sn
ow

bl
ow

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

31  
E

ng
in

e 
2 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

s
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
70

0,
50

0
   

   
   

   

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s

33  
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

R
ev

al
ua

ti
on

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
2,

44
5,

08
0

$ 
   

   
73

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

68
5,

53
0

$ 
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
94

6,
03

0
$ 

   
  

20
16

-2
0 

C
IP

P
ro

je
ct

 S
u

m
m

ar
y

P
ag

e 
2

P
ro

p
os

ed
: 

M
ar

ch
 1

6,
 2

01
5 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

ea
ri

n
g:

  M
ay

 1
4,

 2
01

5 
A

d
op

te
d

: 
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECT SUMMARY

FY  2016-2020

PROJECT TITLE PROJECT NO.
BHS Boiler plant replacement and upgrade
DEPARTMENT PROJECT MANAGER DEPT. PRIORITY

School Department School Facilities Manager
PROJECT LOCATION TIF (Y or N) DISTRICT USEFUL LIFE (years)

Brunswick High School 25                
PROJECT DESCRIPTION    Describe the project and summarize why the project is necessary.  Address evaluation criteria.

PROJECT SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS   (estimates should cover entire cost of project)

SOURCES OF FUNDS Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

G.O. Bonds -                   553,030       553,030       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

     TOTALS -                   -                   553,030       -                   -                   -                   553,030       
USES OF FUNDS Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

Turnkey installation, etc. -                   553,030       553,030       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

TOTALS -                   -                   553,030       -                   -                   -                   553,030       
What is the source and date of your cost estimate?     (e.g. preliminary estimate -  6/30/13, design - 12/31/12, etc....)

This project goal is to replace the original boiler plant equipment with modern energy efficient designed to run in the 90% 
efficiency range. The current system is a dual fuel boiler which, because of it's design for multiple fuels, cannot operate at the 
potential efficiency of today's systems. I plan to install 3 boilers that will stage at minimal operating temperature (125 degree) 
for a single unit to all three boilers operating at maximum output. 

I also plan to replace the domestic hot water system so that we can operate that system more efficiently. Currently we heat far 
too much how water during school hours and even more during non-school days and times. These days with the use of low 
flow aerators and fixtures, we tend to pull hot water from the boiler, but with the minimal flow, we don't actually get the 
water. This is wasted energy being pulled but never actually used. 

Because of its inability to operate efficiently one of the boilers is kept off for most of the year and in doing so causes it to 
condensate to the point that it has been sited for several years by the boiler inspector. He fears that the corrosion will 
ultimately lead it to failure because of the corrosion. I do not want to get caught with insufficient heating during the winter 
thereby needing to respond by emergency mode and ending up with a system that will be less than thius efficiency.

Siemens Technology 8/13/2013, revised from 2012 for $527,000. (Added 3% for 2015-16)

Projects2016-20 BHS Boiler Page 19
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



CONSISTENCY WITH PLANS AND STUDIES
Describe how this project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and/or other plans or studies.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL OR INTERAGENCY IMPACT
Explain how this project will impact other departments or agencies.  Do you know of any other project with which this

project could or should be combined in order to maximize the benefits from each?

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGETS
Provide an estimate of the annual costs or savings that will result from this project over the next five (5) years.  Show savings as negative.

Type of Cost/(Savings) 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

Direct energy savings 22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         110,000       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

                                    TOTALS (net) 22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         110,000       
Explain the changes in the operating budgets     (i.e. additional personnel or equipment, increased revenues. etc.)

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED     Describe what was considered as an alternative to this project.

 EFFECT OF DELAYING THIS PROJECT     What is the effect if this project is not funded or funding is delayed?

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS     Discuss any other information that should be considered for this project.

Meets the needs of the Brunswick School Department as it grows to meet future educational demands

Minimal extra departmental interaction. Should or could be combined with other Major Capital Improvement Projects

Projects2016-20 BHS Boiler Page 20
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 

An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water 
System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other 
costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount 

not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized 
Hereunder  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Council”) of the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted a 
Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016 - 2020 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP recommends replacement of the Brunswick High School boiler, along with other 
improvements in the boiler room as identified in the project developed by the School Department, (the 
“Brunswick High School Boiler Project”) to be funded with general obligation debt; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the School Department, with its HVAC service contractor, has established a project budget 
of $575,000, all of which is expected to be financed with the issue of general obligation bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Charter”) requires that any capital 
acquisition to be financed solely or partly by the issuance of bonds or notes to be authorized by ordinance; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. 

 
Section 1.  Funding Sources and Appropriations. 
 

a. A total of five hundred and seventy-five thousand ($575,000), plus any additional 
amounts authorized under this ordinance, are appropriated to finance the cost of boiler 
replacement and upgrades, including acquisition and installation of boilers for heating 
and domestic hot water at Brunswick High School (the “Project”).   
 

b. The issue and sale of the Town’s general obligation bonds or notes (and notes in 
anticipation thereof) is authorized in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed five 
hundred and seventy-five thousand ($575,000), plus the cost of issuance.  The proceeds 
of the bonds and notes are appropriated to finance the costs of the Project.  The bonds and 
notes may also be used to reimburse the Town for any prior expenditures on the Project, 
or to refinance notes or advances as authorized herein.   

 
Section 2.  Authorization for Project.  The Town Manager is authorized to negotiate, execute, 

and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, agreements, and other documents 
and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or appropriate in connection with 
the Project.  The aforementioned items shall be in such form and contain such terms and conditions as 
may be approved by the Town Manager.  Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the Town 
Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the Town Manager may delegate the authority 
granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 

 
Section 3.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 

Project, or any portion thereof, includes: 



 

 

 
a. the cost of planning, and engineering, and other professional services associated with the 

Project;  
b. the costs related to applying for and obtaining all permits and licenses, 
c. the cost of constructing the Project, and all costs determined by the Town Manager to be 

necessary to place the Project in service and ready for its intended use;  
d. the cost of insuring the Project while under construction and for a reasonable period upon 

substantial completion of the project, including builders risk, general liability, product 
liability, workers compensation and any other insurance costs the Town Manager 
determines is related to the Project; 

e. the costs of financing the Project including but not limited to financing charges and 
issuance costs, underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees and costs, 
application fees, and other fees and expenses related to financing the Project;  

f. interest costs prior to and during construction and for a period not to exceed three years 
from the issue date of the bonds, underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees 
and costs, application fees, and other fees and expenses related to the financing 
transaction;  

g. any other costs identified in the Project budget provided with the proposal, and the cost of 
any other items or services deemed to be cost under generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) as determined by the Town’s Finance Director. 
 

Section 4.  Details of the Bonds or Notes.   
 

a. Execution and Delivery of Bonds and Notes.  The bonds and notes issued hereunder, and 
any issued as the result of exchanges or transfers, shall be signed by the Treasurer and be 
countersigned by the Chair of the Town Council.  The bonds and notes shall have the seal 
of the Town affixed thereon, and be attested by the Town Clerk.  The Treasurer and Chair 
of the Town Council, from time to time, shall execute such bonds and notes as may be 
required to provide for exchanges or transfers of bonds and notes hereinbefore 
authorized.  
 

b. Book Entry Certificates  In lieu of physical certificates of the bonds and notes, the 
Treasurer be and hereby is authorized to undertake all acts necessary to provide for the 
issuance and transfer of such bonds and notes in book-entry form pursuant to the 
Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System.  As an alternative to the provisions 
herein regarding physical transfer of bonds, and the Treasurer is authorized and 
empowered to enter into a Letter of Representation or any other contract, agreement or 
understanding necessary or, in the Treasurer’s opinion, appropriate in order to qualify the 
bonds for and participate in the Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System. 

 
c. Tax Exempt Bonds Option.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to determine whether to issue the bonds and notes authorized 
herein as taxable bonds and notes or tax-exempt bonds and notes.  To the extent such 
bonds and notes are issued as tax-exempt bonds, the Treasurer and Chair of the Town 
Council are individually authorized to covenant and agree, on behalf of the Town and for 
the benefit of the holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required 
reports and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that interest on the 
bonds and notes will remain exempt from federal income taxation and that the Town will 
refrain from any action that would cause interest on the bonds and notes to be subject to 
federal income taxation. 



 

 

 
d. No Arbitrage Certification.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to covenant and certify on behalf of the Town that no part of the 
proceeds of the bonds and notes shall be used directly or indirectly to acquire any 
securities or obligations, the acquisition of which would cause such bonds or notes to be 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

 
e. Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and empowered 

to take all such action as may be necessary to designate such bonds and/or notes as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b) of the Code; it being the 
Town’s intention that the Treasurer, with advice of bond counsel, to make the required 
Section 265(b) election with respect to such bonds and notes, but only to the extent the 
election may be available and advisable as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
f. Principal Denominations.  The principal amount of the bonds of the same maturity shall 

be such minimum denomination as the Treasurer, in the Treasurer’s discretion, may 
approve. 

 
g. Maturities and Interest Rates.  The maturity(ies), interest rate(s) and sale price of the 

bonds or notes issued hereunder shall be either sent out to bid or negotiated by the 
Treasurer in such manner as the Treasurer deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Town and the financing of the above-referenced Project.  The Treasurer be and 
hereby is authorized to provide that any of the bonds or notes hereinbefore authorized 
may be made callable, with or without premium, prior to their stated dates of maturity.  
The bonds or notes hereby authorized shall be in such form and to otherwise contain such 
other terms and provisions as the Treasurer may approve, his or her approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by his/her execution thereof.   

 
h. Consolidation of Bond or Notes.  Any or all of the bonds or notes issued hereunder may 

be consolidated with and become a part of any other issue of bonds or notes authorized to 
be issued by any previous or subsequent ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of 
Brunswick. 

 
i. Other Authorized Officials.  If the Treasurer, Chair of the Town Council or Town Clerk 

are for any reason unavailable to approve and execute the bonds hereinbefore authorized 
or any other documents necessary or convenient to the issuance, execution and delivery 
of the bonds, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, whether as an 
assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force 
and effect as if such official had performed such act. 

 
j. Absence of Officials Prior to Delivery.  If any of the officials of the Town who have 

signed or sealed the bonds or notes shall cease to be such officials before the bonds or 
notes signed and sealed shall have been actually authenticated or delivered by the Town, 
such bonds and notes nevertheless may be authenticated, issued, and delivered with the 
same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed or sealed such bonds or 
notes had not ceased to be such officer or official; and also any such bonds and notes may 
be signed and sealed on behalf of the Town by those persons who, at the actual date of 
the execution of such bonds and notes, shall be the proper officials of the Town, although 



 

 

at the nominal date of such bonds and notes any such person shall not have been such 
officer or official. 

 
Section 5.  Sale of Bonds or Notes and Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent 
 

a. Official Statement.  The Treasurer is authorized to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement for use in the offering and sale 
of the bonds or notes.  The Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement shall be 
in such form and contain such information as may be approved by the Treasurer, with the 
advice of the underwriter for the bonds or notes and bond counsel for the Town.  The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in the name 
of and on behalf of the Town in connection with offering the bonds or notes is approved. 

 
b. Counsel.  The Treasurer is authorized to select Issuer Counsel, Bond Counsel and any 

other counsel the Treasurer deems necessary in connection with the planning, sale and 
issuance of the notes or bonds, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as 
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. 
 

c. Underwriter.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the underwriter for the bonds and 
notes, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as may be necessary or 
appropriate in connection therewith. 

 
d. Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the 

registrar, paying agent, and transfer agent for the bonds or notes and to execute and 
deliver such contracts and agreements as may be necessary or appropriate to secure their 
services.  The bonds and notes shall be transferable only on the registration books of the 
Town kept by the transfer agent.  Upon surrender of the bonds or notes with an 
accompanying written instrument of exchange or transfer, executed by the registered 
owner or the owner’s attorney, duly authorized in writing and satisfactory to the transfer 
agent, the Town and the transfer agent shall make a charge sufficient to cover any tax, fee 
or any other governmental charge required to be payable with respect to such exchange or 
transfer.  Subsequent to the first exchange or transfer, the cost of preparing new bonds or 
notes upon exchanges or transfer thereof shall be paid by the person requesting the same. 

 
Section 6.  Refunding.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby are 

authorized to execute a refunding of general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized when the 
Treasurer and the Chair of the Town Council determine that such refunding is in the best interest of the 
Town.  All delegated authority provided pursuant to this ordinance shall also apply to a refunding bond 
and note issue relating to the general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized. 

 
Section 7.  Continuing Disclosure.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby 

are individually authorized to covenant, certify, and agree, on behalf of the Town, for the benefit of the 
holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required reports, make any annual financial 
or material event disclosure, and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that the disclosure 
requirements imposed by Rule 15c12-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission are met. 

 
Section 8.  Investment Earnings and Other Bond Proceeds.  Any investment earnings on the 

proceeds of the bonds and notes and any other unexpended proceeds thereof are appropriated for the 
following purposes: 

 



 

 

a. To any costs of the Project in excess of the amounts authorized herein; 
b. In accordance with the applicable terms and conditions of the Town’s Arbitrage and Use 

of Proceeds Certificate delivered in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes 
including, to the extent permitted thereunder, to interest on the bonds or notes, or to the 
Town's general fund; 

c. To any other qualified costs approved by the Town Council and not prohibited by the 
Town Charter or Ordinances, Maine law or the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Section 9.  Authority to Levy Tax for Debt Service.  In each of the years during which any of 

the bonds or notes are outstanding, there shall be levied a tax in an amount which, with other revenues, if 
any, available for that purpose, shall be sufficient to pay the interest on said bonds or notes, payable in 
such year, and the principal of such bonds maturing in such year. 

 
Section 10.  Authority to Accept Grants and Contributions.  The Town Manager is authorized 

to accept contributions and make applications for federal and state grant funds, said contributions and 
grants to be used in lieu of or in addition to bond proceeds authorized hereunder.  The Town Manager is 
authorized to accept contributions and grants on behalf of the Town and said amounts are hereby 
appropriated to fund any portion of the Project.  The total amount appropriated under this Ordinance shall 
not be greater than the amount of bond proceeds plus any contributions and grants, and plus any other 
amounts appropriated herein. 

Section 11.  Advances to Fund Project.  The Town is authorized to make advances, from the 
Town’s general fund to a capital projects fund, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $575,000 in 
anticipation of the issuance of bonds or notes, or for the purpose of financing any part of the Project.  
Advances used in lieu of bonds or notes authorized hereunder, are appropriated to finance the cost, or any 
part thereof, of the Project.  The Treasurer is authorized to establish and amend all details of any advances 
including, but not limited to the term, interest rates, and payment schedule.  The authority to issue the 
bonds and notes authorized herein shall remain and continue in full force and effect during the entire term 
of the advance(s).  The proceeds of the bonds and notes issued hereunder may be used to repay the 
advance(s) of any portion thereof. 

 
Section 12.  Declaration of Official Intent.  Advances from the Town’s general fund may 

finance the original expenditures related to the Project.  It is expected that those advances will be 
reimbursed in part or in whole by the issuance of bonds or notes authorized hereunder.  It is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Ordinance shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2.  

 
Section 13.  Abandonment of Borrowing Authority.  The Treasurer is empowered to declare 

abandoned the authority to issue any bonds or notes the Treasurer deems to be in excess of the amount 
necessary to complete the Project.  Such a declaration once made may not be reversed other than by 
ordinance. 

 
 

Proposed to Town Council:   September 8, 2015 
Public Hearing:    
Adopted by Town Council:  



ASSUMPTIONS: PROJECT NO: 4                              
Amount Financed: 575,000               Total Interest: 88,550                     
Number of Years: 10                        Total Cost: 663,550                   
Interest Rate: 2.80%
Start Bond Year: 31                        

BOND FISCAL TOTAL CUMMULATIVE
YEAR YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST PAYMENTS BALANCE EQUITY

30           2015-16 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
31           2016-17 57,500.00            16,100.00            73,600.00            517,500.00          57,500.00                
32           2017-18 57,500.00            14,490.00            71,990.00            460,000.00          115,000.00              
33           2018-19 57,500.00            12,880.00            70,380.00            402,500.00          172,500.00              
34           2019-20 57,500.00            11,270.00            68,770.00            345,000.00          230,000.00              
35           2020-21 57,500.00            9,660.00              67,160.00            287,500.00          287,500.00              
36           2021-22 57,500.00            8,050.00              65,550.00            230,000.00          345,000.00              
37           2022-23 57,500.00            6,440.00              63,940.00            172,500.00          402,500.00              
38           2023-24 57,500.00            4,830.00              62,330.00            115,000.00          460,000.00              
39           2024-25 57,500.00            3,220.00              60,720.00            57,500.00            517,500.00              
40           2025-26 57,500.00            1,610.00              59,110.00            -                       575,000.00              
41           2026-27 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
42           2027-28 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
43           2028-29 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
44           2029-30 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
45           2030-31 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
46           2031-32 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
47           2032-33 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
48           2033-34 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
49           2034-35 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
50           2035-36 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
51           2036-37 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
52           2037-38 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
53           2038-39 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
54           2039-40 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
55           2040-41 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
56           2041-42 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
57           2042-43 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
58           2043-44 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
59           2044-45 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
60           2045-46 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           

TOTAL 575,000.00          88,550.00            663,550.00          

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
Bond Amortization Schedule

BHS Boiler Plant Replacement

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\CIP 2016\2017-21 CIP4 Page 1



 
 

 
ITEM 91 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Revaluation	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town’s	2016‐20	Capital	Improvement	Program	(CIP),	adopted	on	May	28,	2015,	recommends	
funding	a	complete	revaluation	of	all	taxable	property	at	an	estimated	cost	of	$400,000.		The	CIP	
further	recommends	that	the	project	be	funded	with	the	issuance	of	bonds	to	be	amortized	over	
five	years.		The	relevant	pages	from	the	CIP	are	attached,	along	with	a	proposed	bond	ordinance	
and	a	projected	amortization	schedule	for	the	bonds.	
	
Also	attached	is	a	memorandum	from	Assessor	Cathy	Jamison,	explaining	why	she	continues	to	
advocate	for	a	reassessment	of	property	tax	values.		Over	the	summer,	Cathy	developed	an	RFP	to	
be	utilized	in	the	solicitation	and	selection	of	a	firm	to	conduct	the	revaluation.		
	
If	the	Council	votes	to	fund	the	revaluation	project,	the	RFP	would	be	issued	later	this	fall.		We	
anticipate	that	a	contract	would	be	executed	by	year	end,	with	work	to	commence	at	the	start	of	
2016.		Implementation	of	new	values	would	be	effective	for	the	2017‐18	fiscal	year.	
	
Should	the	Town	Council	wish	to	move	forward	with	the	revaluation	project,	it	will	need	to	
establish	a	public	hearing	date	for	the	proposed	bond	ordinance.	
	



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
FROM:	 Cathy	Jamison	
	 Assessor	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Revaluation	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	completed	its	last	revaluation	in	2000.		At	that	time,	all	residential	and	
commercial	properties	were	inspected	and	new	values	assessed	in	order	to	bring	the	assessments	
to	fair	market	value.		We	are	currently	at	a	70%	assessment	ratio	for	the	2015	tax	year.			This	is	an	
average	ratio	for	all	types	of	properties	comparing	the	assessed	value	to	selling	price.				Recent	sales	
are	indicating	that	the	market	is	improving.		The	assessment	ratios	on	a	lot	of	properties	selling	are	
in	the	60’s	percent	range	and	below.			
	
A	proposal	for	a	revaluation	company	to	do	a	complete	revaluation	is	$400,000.		This	would	include	
revaluing	residential	and	commercial	properties	with	an	interior	inspection	and	listing	of	all	
properties.		New	cost	tables	for	land	and	buildings	would	be	developed	to	reflect	the	current	
market.		The	town	would	then	be	at	a	100%	assessment	ratio.		It	has	been	15	years	since	the	
majority	of	the	properties	have	been	reassessed.	
	
The	Maine	Constitution	states	that	all	taxes	upon	real	and	personal	estate,	assessed	by	authority	of	
this	State,	shall	be	apportioned	and	assessed	equally	according	to	just	value.	Just	value	is	
synonymous	with	market	value.		An	equalization	project	is	the	reappraisal	of	all	real	estate	to	bring	
about	uniformity	in	property	valuations.	The	purpose	is	to	value	all	properties	by	the	same	
standard	so	that	each	property	owner	is	paying	only	their	fair	share	of	the	cost	of	essential	
community	services.	
	
Changes	in	economic	conditions	have	caused	inequities	to	develop.		Different	types	of	properties	
increase	in	value	at	different	rates	thereby	creating	inequalities	among	property	tax	owners.		Some	
properties	may	be	overvalued	while	others	are	undervalued.		The	solution	to	this	problem	is	to	
equalize	all	properties	and	bring	assessments	up	to	date	with	current	market	value.		It	is	about	
being	equitable	and	fair	to	all	property	owners.		
	
Most	likely,	values	will	change	on	all	properties.	However,	not	all	property	values	will	change	at	the	
same	rate.		Some	neighborhoods	may	have	increased	in	value,	decreased	in	value	or	remained	the	
same.		One	purpose	of	the	equalization	project	is	to	make	sure	that	the	assessed	values	reflect	the	
changes	that	have	occurred	in	the	real	estate	market.	
	
Based	on	our	review	of	current	sales	data,	we	expect	a	revaluation	will	produce	a	tax	shift	from	
commercial	properties	to	residential	properties.	Not	all	commercial	properties	will	see	a	decrease	
in	their	values	for	the	same	reason	residential	owners	may	not	see	a	decrease	in	their	properties.		
Within	the	residential	properties	we	also	expect	to	see	tax	shifts	in	among	the	various	property	
classes.	



P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

T
O

T
A

L
F

U
N

D
IN

G
 

I.
  P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

C
ap

it
al

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts

F
ac

il
it

ie
s 

- 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

M
cL

el
la

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

1,
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
17  

L
ib

ra
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
U

pg
ra

de
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
2,

50
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

E
m

er
so

n 
F

ir
e 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

oi
le

r 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f 
(p

ar
ti

al
)

16
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

B
JH

S
 A

ir
 Q

ua
li

ty
45

4,
08

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
19  

B
H

S
 B

oi
le

r 
P

la
nt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

3,
03

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

3,
03

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 F

ac
il

it
ie

s 
- 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
1,

77
0,

08
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

   

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

21  
C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
li

gh
ts

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

li
gh

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
M

.D
.O

.T
N

an
cy

/P
at

ri
ci

a/
P

ie
rc

e 
R

ec
on

st
r

58
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

A
nd

ro
sc

og
gi

n 
B

ik
e 

P
at

h 
D

es
ig

n
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
23  

P
in

e 
S

tr
ee

t a
cc

es
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s

25  
R

iv
er

w
al

k
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
M

.D
.O

.T
R

iv
er

w
al

k
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

T
ot

al
 I

n
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

62
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

16
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1,
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

C
ap

it
al

 A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
s

27  
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
29  

P
&

R
 S

id
ew

al
k 

tr
ac

to
r/

sn
ow

bl
ow

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

31  
E

ng
in

e 
2 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

s
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
70

0,
50

0
   

   
   

   

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s

33  
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

R
ev

al
ua

ti
on

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
2,

44
5,

08
0

$ 
   

   
73

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

68
5,

53
0

$ 
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
52

5,
00

0
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
94

6,
03

0
$ 

   
  

20
16

-2
0 

C
IP

P
ro

je
ct

 S
u

m
m

ar
y

P
ag

e 
2

P
ro

p
os

ed
: 

M
ar

ch
 1

6,
 2

01
5 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

ea
ri

n
g:

  M
ay

 1
4,

 2
01

5 
A

d
op

te
d

: 
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECT SUMMARY

FY  2016-2020

PROJECT TITLE PROJECT NO.
Property Revaluation

PROJECT MANAGER DEPT. PRIORITY
Assessing Dept Assessor 1                  

PROJECT LOCATION TIF (Y or N) DISTRICT USEFUL LIFE (years)
N 10                

PROJECT DESCRIPTION    Describe the project and summarize why the project is necessary.  Address evaluation criteria.

PROJECT SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS   (estimates should cover entire cost of project)

Source of Funds: Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

G.O. Bonds 400,000       400,000       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

     TOTAL SOURCES -                   400,000       -                   -                   -                   -                   400,000       
Use of Funds: Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

-                   
Property Revaluation 400,000       400,000       

-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

TOTAL USES -                   400,000       -                   -                   -                   -                   400,000       
What is the source and date of your cost estimate?     (e.g. preliminary estimate -  6/30/13, design - 12/31/12, etc....)

The Town of Brunswick completed its last revaluation in 2000.  At that time, all residential and commercial properties were 
inspected and new values assessed in order to bring the assessments to fair market value.  We are currently at a 70% 
assessment ratio for the 2015 tax year.   This is an average ratio for all types of properties comparing the assessed value to 
selling price.    Recent sales are indicating that the market is improving.  The assessment ratios on a number of current 
property sales are in the 60’s percentage range and below.

In addition, changes in economic conditions have caused inequities to develop.  Different types of properties increase in value 
at different rates thereby creating inequalities among property tax owners.  Some properties may be overvalued while others 
are undervalued.  The solution to this problem is to equalize all properties and bring assessments up to date with current 
market value. The Maine Constitution states that all taxes upon real and personal estate, assessed by authority of this State, 
shall be apportioned and assessed equally according to just value. Just value is synonymous with market value.  An 
equalization project is the reappraisal of all real estate to bring about uniformity in property valuations. The purpose is to value 
all properties by the same standard so that each property owner is paying only their fair share of the cost of essential 
community services.

The proposal for a revaluation company to do a complete revaluation is $400,000.  This would include revaluing residential 
and commercial properties with an interior inspection and listing of all properties.  New cost tables for land and buildings 
would be developed to reflect the current market.  The revaluation contract would also include new images, all mailings (I&E 
and valuation notices), informal hearings, and final hearing change notices.

Estimate/quote from KRT Appraisal dated 5/20/14, confirmed still valid by email March 2015.

Projects2016-20 Revaluation Page 33
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



CONSISTENCY WITH PLANS AND STUDIES
Describe how this project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and/or other plans or studies.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL OR INTERAGENCY IMPACT
Explain how this project will impact other departments or agencies.  Do you know of any other project with which this

project could or should be combined in order to maximize the benefits from each?

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGETS
Provide an estimate of the annual costs or savings that will result from this project over the next five (5) years.  Show savings as negative.

Type of Cost/(Savings) 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

                                    TOTALS (net) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Explain the changes in the operating budgets     (i.e. additional personnel or equipment, increased revenues. etc.)

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED & EFFECT OF DELAYING THIS PROJECT
Describe what was considered as an alternative to this project.  What is the effect if this project is not funded or delayed?

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS     Discuss any other information that should be considered for this project.

None

State law requires that assessed values must be at least 70% of full valuation.  The ratio is 70% for 2015, but it is likely that 
the ratio will fall below 70% in future years.

The Maine Constitution, Art. IX, § 7. Valuation. While the public expenses shall be assessed on
estates, a general valuation shall be taken at least once in 10 years.  

None

Projects2016-20 Revaluation Page 34
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



  

 

1 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 
An Ordinance Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All 
Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of Brunswick 
With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and 
Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost 

of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Council”) of the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted a 
Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016 – 2020 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP identifies the reappraisal and revaluation of all taxable real property and all tax-
exempt real property located within the Town of Brunswick (the “Property Revaluation Project”) to be 
undertaken beginning in the 2015-16 fiscal year, at a cost not to exceed $400,000, to be funded with 
general obligation debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Charter”) requires that any project to be 
financed solely or partly by the issuance of bonds or notes to be authorized by ordinance; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. 

 
Section 1.  Funding Sources and Appropriations. 
 

a. A total of four hundred thousand ($400,000), plus any additional amounts authorized 
under this ordinance, are appropriated to finance the cost the reappraisal and revaluation 
of all taxable real property and all tax-exempt real property located within the Town of 
Brunswick (the ”Project”). 
 

b. The issue and sale of the Town’s general obligation bonds or notes (and notes in 
anticipation thereof) is authorized in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed four 
hundred thousand ($400,000), plus the cost of issuance.  The proceeds of the bonds and 
notes are appropriated to finance the costs of the Project.  The bonds and notes may also 
be used to reimburse the Town for any prior expenditures on the Project, or to refinance 
notes or advances as authorized herein.   

 
Section 2.  Authorization for Project.  The Town Manager is authorized to negotiate, execute, 

and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, agreements, and other documents 
and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or appropriate in connection with 
the Project.  The aforementioned items shall be in such form and contain such terms and conditions as 
may be approved by the Town Manager.  Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the Town 
Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the Town Manager may delegate the authority 
granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 

 
Section 3.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 

Project, or any portion thereof, includes: 
 



  

 

2 

a. the cost of all or any portion of the Project, including all costs of preparing for work on 
the Project, contracted professional services to complete the Project, and all costs relating 
to finalizing the Project to be ready for its intended use and placed in service; 

b. the cost of financing charges and issuance costs, including premiums for insurance; 
c. the cost of interest prior to the date of the execution of any agreement or contract for the 

Project, through the date the Project is complete and placed in service, however, for a 
period not to exceed three years from the issue date of the bonds or notes; 

d. the cost of underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees and costs, application 
fees, and other fees and expenses related to financing the Project;  

e. the cost of all other financing authorized hereunder, whether related or unrelated to the 
foregoing; 

f. the cost of any other item or service deemed to be a cost under generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”) as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
Section 4.  Details of the Bonds or Notes.   
 

a. Execution and Delivery of Bonds and Notes.  The bonds and notes issued hereunder, and 
any issued as the result of exchanges or transfers, shall be signed by the Treasurer and be 
countersigned by the Chair of the Town Council.  The bonds and notes shall have the seal 
of the Town affixed thereon, and be attested by the Town Clerk.  The Treasurer and Chair 
of the Town Council, from time to time, shall execute such bonds and notes as may be 
required to provide for exchanges or transfers of bonds and notes hereinbefore 
authorized. 
 

b. Book Entry Certificates  In lieu of physical certificates of the bonds and notes, the 
Treasurer be and hereby is authorized to undertake all acts necessary to provide for the 
issuance and transfer of such bonds and notes in book-entry form pursuant to the 
Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System.  As an alternative to the provisions 
herein regarding physical transfer of bonds, and the Treasurer is authorized and 
empowered to enter into a Letter of Representation or any other contract, agreement or 
understanding necessary or, in the Treasurer’s opinion, appropriate in order to qualify the 
bonds for and participate in the Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System. 

 
c. Tax Exempt Bonds Option.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to determine whether to issue the bonds and notes authorized 
herein as taxable bonds and notes or tax-exempt bonds and notes.  To the extent such 
bonds and notes are issued as tax-exempt bonds, the Treasurer and Chair of the Town 
Council are individually authorized to covenant and agree, on behalf of the Town and for 
the benefit of the holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required 
reports and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that interest on the 
bonds and notes will remain exempt from federal income taxation and that the Town will 
refrain from any action that would cause interest on the bonds and notes to be subject to 
federal income taxation. 
  

d. No Arbitrage Certification.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 
individually authorized to covenant and certify on behalf of the Town that no part of the 
proceeds of the bonds and notes shall be used directly or indirectly to acquire any 
securities or obligations, the acquisition of which would cause such bonds or notes to be 



  

 

3 

“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

 
e. Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and empowered 

to take all such action as may be necessary to designate such bonds and/or notes as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b) of the Code; it being the 
Town’s intention that the Treasurer, with advice of bond counsel, to make the required 
Section 265(b) election with respect to such bonds and notes, but only to the extent the 
election may be available and advisable as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
f. Principal Denominations.  The principal amount of the bonds of the same maturity shall 

be such minimum denomination as the Treasurer, in the Treasurer’s discretion, may 
approve. 

 
g. Maturities, and Interest Rates.  The maturity(ies), interest rate(s) and sale price of the 

bonds or notes issued hereunder shall be either set out to bid or negotiated by the 
Treasurer in such manner as the Treasurer deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Town and the financing of the above-referenced Acquisition.  The Treasurer be and 
hereby is authorized to provide that any of the bonds or notes hereinbefore authorized 
may be made callable, with or without premium, prior to their stated dates of maturity.  
The bonds or notes hereby authorized shall be in such form and to otherwise contain such 
other terms and provisions as the Treasurer may approve, his or her approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by their execution thereof.   

 
h. Consolidation of Bond or Notes.  Any or all of the bonds or notes issued hereunder may 

be consolidated with and become a part of any other issue of bonds or notes authorized to 
be issued by any previous or subsequent ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of 
Brunswick. 

 
i. Other Authorized Officials.  If the Treasurer, Chair of the Town Council or Town Clerk 

are for any reason unavailable to approve and execute the bonds hereinbefore authorized 
or any other documents necessary or convenient to the issuance, execution and delivery 
of the bonds, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, whether as an 
assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force 
and effect as if such official had performed such act. 

 
j. Absence of Officials Prior to Delivery.  If any of the officials of the Town who have 

signed or sealed the bonds or notes shall cease to be such officials before the bonds or 
notes signed and sealed shall have been actually authenticated or delivered by the Town, 
such bonds and notes nevertheless may be authenticated, issued, and delivered with the 
same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed or sealed such bonds or 
notes had not ceased to be such officer or official; and also any such bonds and notes may 
be signed and sealed on behalf of the Town by those persons who, at the actual date of 
the execution of such bonds and notes, shall be the proper officials of the Town, although 
at the nominal date of such bonds and notes any such person shall not have been such 
officer or official. 

 
 
 



  

 

4 

Section 5.  Sale of Bonds or Notes and Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent 
 

a. Official Statement.  The Treasurer is authorized to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement for use in the offering and sale 
of the bonds or notes.  The Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement shall be 
in such form and contain such information as may be approved by the Treasurer, with the 
advice of the underwriter for the bonds or notes and bond counsel for the Town.  The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in the name 
of and on behalf of the Town in connection with offering the bonds or notes is approved. 

 
b. Counsel.  The Treasurer is authorized to select Issuer Counsel, Bond Counsel and any 

other counsel the Treasurer deems necessary in connection with the planning, sale and 
issuance of the notes or bonds, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as 
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. 
 

c. Underwriter.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the underwriter for the bonds and 
notes, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as may be necessary or 
appropriate in connection therewith. 

 
d. Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the 

registrar, paying agent, and transfer agent for the bonds or notes and to execute and 
deliver such contracts and agreements as may be necessary or appropriate to secure their 
services.  The bonds and notes shall be transferable only on the registration books of the 
Town kept by the transfer agent.  Upon surrender of the bonds or notes with an 
accompanying written instrument of exchange or transfer, executed by the registered 
owner or the owner’s attorney, duly authorized in writing and satisfactory to the transfer 
agent, the Town and the transfer agent shall make a charge sufficient to cover any tax, fee 
or any other governmental charge required to be payable with respect to such exchange or 
transfer.  Subsequent to the first exchange or transfer, the cost of preparing new bonds or 
notes upon exchanges or transfer thereof shall be paid by the person requesting the same. 

 
Section 6.  Refunding.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby are 

authorized to execute a refunding of general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized when the 
Treasurer and the Chair of the Town Council determine that such refunding is in the best interest of the 
Town.  All delegated authority provided pursuant to this ordinance shall also apply to a refunding bond 
and note issue relating to the general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized. 

 
Section 7.  Continuing Disclosure.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby 

are individually authorized to covenant, certify, and agree, on behalf of the Town, for the benefit of the 
holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required reports, make any annual financial 
or material event disclosure, and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that the disclosure 
requirements imposed by Rule 15c12-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission are met. 

 
Section 8.  Investment Earnings and Other Bond Proceeds.  Any investment earnings on the 

proceeds of the bonds and notes and any other unexpended proceeds thereof are appropriated for the 
following purposes: 

 
a. To any costs of the Project in excess of the amounts authorized herein; 



  

 

5 

b. In accordance with the applicable terms and conditions of the Town’s Arbitrage and Use 
of Proceeds Certificate delivered in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes 
including, to the extent permitted thereunder, to interest on the bonds or notes, or to the 
Town's general fund; 

c. To any other qualified costs approved by the Town Council and not prohibited by the 
Town Charter or Ordinances, Maine law or the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Section 9.  Authority to Levy Tax for Debt Service.  In each of the years during which any of 

the bonds or notes are outstanding, there shall be levied a tax in an amount which, with other revenues, if 
any, available for that purpose, shall be sufficient to pay the interest on said bonds or notes, payable in 
such year, and the principal of such bonds maturing in such year. 

 
Section 10.  Authority to Accept Grants and Contributions.  The Town Manager is authorized 

to accept contributions and make applications for federal and state grant funds, said contributions and 
grants to be used in lieu of or in addition to bond proceeds authorized hereunder.  The Town Manager is 
authorized to accept contributions and grants on behalf of the Town and said amounts are hereby 
appropriated to fund any portion of the Project.  The total amount appropriated under this Ordinance shall 
not be greater than the amount of bond proceeds plus any contributions and grants, and plus any other 
amounts appropriated herein. 

Section 11.  Advances to Fund Project.  The Town is authorized to make advances, from the 
Town’s general fund to a capital projects fund, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $400,000, in 
anticipation of the issuance of bonds or notes, or for the purpose of financing any part of the Project.  
Advances used in lieu of bonds or notes authorized hereunder, are appropriated to finance the cost, or any 
part thereof, of the Project.  The Treasurer is authorized to establish and amend all details of any advances 
including, but not limited to the term, interest rates, and payment schedule.  The authority to issue the 
bonds and notes authorized herein shall remain and continue in full force and effect during the entire term 
of the advance(s).  The proceeds of the bonds and notes issued hereunder may be used to repay the 
advance(s) of any portion thereof. 

 
Section 12.  Declaration of Official Intent.  Advances from the Town’s general fund may 

finance the original expenditures related to the Project.  It is expected that those advances will be 
reimbursed in part or in whole by the issuance of bonds or notes authorized hereunder.  It is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Ordinance shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2.  

 
Section 13.  Abandonment of Borrowing Authority.  The Treasurer is empowered to declare 

abandoned the authority to issue any bonds or notes the Treasurer deems to be in excess of the amount 
necessary to complete the Project.  Such a declaration once made may not be reversed other than by 
ordinance. 

 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: September 8, 2015 
Public Hearing:    
Adopted by Town Council:  
 



ASSUMPTIONS: PROJECT NO: 20                            
Amount Financed: 400,000               Total Interest: 31,200                     
Number of Years: 5                          Total Cost: 431,200                   
Interest Rate: 2.60%
Start Bond Year: 31                        

BOND FISCAL TOTAL CUMMULATIVE
YEAR YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST PAYMENTS BALANCE EQUITY

30           2015-16 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
31           2016-17 80,000.00            10,400.00            90,400.00            320,000.00          80,000.00                
32           2017-18 80,000.00            8,320.00              88,320.00            240,000.00          160,000.00              
33           2018-19 80,000.00            6,240.00              86,240.00            160,000.00          240,000.00              
34           2019-20 80,000.00            4,160.00              84,160.00            80,000.00            320,000.00              
35           2020-21 80,000.00            2,080.00              82,080.00            -                       400,000.00              
36           2021-22 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
37           2022-23 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
38           2023-24 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
39           2024-25 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
40           2025-26 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
41           2026-27 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
42           2027-28 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
43           2028-29 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
44           2029-30 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
45           2030-31 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
46           2031-32 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
47           2032-33 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
48           2033-34 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
49           2034-35 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
50           2035-36 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
51           2036-37 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
52           2037-38 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
53           2038-39 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
54           2039-40 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
55           2040-41 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
56           2041-42 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
57           2042-43 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
58           2043-44 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
59           2044-45 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
60           2045-46 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           

TOTAL 400,000.00          31,200.00            431,200.00          

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
Bond Amortization Schedule

Property Revaluation

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\CIP 2016\2017-21 CIP20 Page 1



 
 

 
ITEM 92 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 River	Road	Culvert	Replacement	
	
	
	
As	you	may	recall,	the	Town	submitted	a	proposal	to	the	Maine	Department	of	Environmental	
Protection	(DEP)	for	assistance	with	the	replacement	of	a	culvert	on	River	Road	that	was	destroyed	
by	a	flood	last	fall.		The	Town	is	being	required,	through	the	permitting	process,	to	upgrade	to	a	
pipe	arch,	a	far	more	expensive	option	than	a	traditional	culvert..		On	August	14th	we	were	notified	
by	DEP	that	Brunswick	had	been	approved	for	assistance	of	$93,800.		A	copy	of	that	notification	is	
attached.	
	
Unlike	a	typical	grant,	this	DEP	program	required	the	Town	to	submit	a	proposal	in	response	to	the	
DEP’s	request	for	proposals.		As	a	purchase	contract	between	the	Town	and	the	DEP,	the	award	is	
subject	to	appeal	and	additional	review.		We	expect	that	we	will	receive	notification	that	the	award	
is	final	later	this	month.	
	
In	order	to	move	forward	with	this	project	we	request	that	the	Town	Council	authorize	us	to	enter	
into	a	contract	with	the	State	of	Maine	in	the	amount	of	$93,800.		Work	on	the	project	cannot	begin	
until	we	receive	the	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	(ACOE)	permit	that	we	applied	for	earlier	this	year.	



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 14, 2015 
 
 
John Foster 
Town of Brunswick 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, ME 04011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Notice of Conditional Contract Awards under RFP # 201504077,  

Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement Projects 
 
 
Dear Mr. Foster: 
 
This letter is in regard to the subject Request for Proposals (RFP), issued by the State of Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection for Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement 
Projects.  The Department has evaluated the proposals received using the evaluation criteria 
identified in the RFP, and the Department is hereby announcing its conditional contract awards 
to the following bidders: 
 

 St. Albans – Springer Landing Road  $95,000 
 Litchfield – Jimmy Stream  $95,000 
 Brunswick – River Road  $93,800 
 Woodstock – Concord Pond Road  $80,000 
 Bremen – Heath Road Bridge  $95,000 
 Orland – Happytown Road Crossing  $47,496 
 Ellsworth – Shore Road  $89,354 
 Lower Murray Fitts Mountain Road Association – Fitts Mountain Road  $26,300 
 Monson – Elliotsville Road  $10,025 
 Fort Kent – Black Lake Road  $15,000 
 Fayette – King Brook  $65,000 
 Newcastle – West Old County Road (2)  $5,850 and $25,000 
 Western Foothills Land Trust – Crooked River  $25,600 
 Piscataquis County – Blackstone Brook  $31,575  

  

STATE OF MAINE 
DEPARTMENT OF  

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 
 
  Paul R. LePage 

     Governor 

Patricia Aho 
Commissioner 



Page 2 of 3 
 

The bidders listed above received the evaluation team’s highest rankings.  The Department will 
be contacting the aforementioned bidders soon to negotiate a contract.  As provided in the RFP, 
the Notice of Conditional Contract Award is subject to execution of a written contract and, as a 
result, this Notice does NOT constitute the formation of a contract between the Department and 
the apparent successful vendor. The vendor shall not acquire any legal or equitable rights 
relative to the contract services until a contract containing terms and conditions acceptable to 
the Department is executed. The Department further reserves the right to cancel this Notice of 
Conditional Contract Award at any time prior to the execution of a written contract. 
 
As stated in the RFP, following announcement of this award decision, all submissions in 
response to the RFP are considered public records available for public inspection pursuant to 
the State of Maine Freedom of Access Act (FOAA). 1 M.R.S. §§ 401 et seq.; 5 M.R.S. § 1825-B 
(6). 
 
This award decision is conditioned upon final approval by the State Procurement Review 
Committee and the successful negotiation of a contract.  A Statement of Appeal Rights has 
been provided with this letter; see below. 
 
Thank you for your interest in doing business with the State of Maine. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Leslie Anderson 
Director of Innovation 
Department of Environmental Protection 
17 State House Station 
Augusta, Maine 04333-0017 
207-287-2821 (direct) 
207-287-2814 (fax) 
Leslie.Anderson@maine.gov 
 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

STATEMENT OF APPEAL RIGHTS 
 
Any person aggrieved by an award decision may request an appeal hearing.  The request must 
be made to the Director of the Bureau of General Services, in writing, within 15 days of 
notification of the contract award as provided in 5 M.R.S. § 1825-E (2) and the Rules of the 
Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Bureau of General Services, Division of 
Purchases, Chapter 120, § (2) (2).  



 
 

 
ITEM 93 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



1

Fran Smith

From: smithfm@brunswickme.org
Sent: Saturday, July 25, 2015 10:32 AM
To: Fran Smith
Subject: New submission from Board Application

Full Name  

  David W Ivery  

Street Address  

  9 Range Rd Brunswick, Maine 04011  

Home phone #  

  207-837-0866  

Cell/mobile phone  

  207-837-0866  

email address  

  divery@pwd.org  

Commitee/Board you are applying for  

  Water District Trustee  

Type of Memberships  

  Full membership  

Do you or any relative currently serve on any Town Board/Committee/Commission

  
 Yes 

What Board/Commission/Committee, the number of years of service, and the relationship to this applicant

  I have served the last 2 yrs as Water District Trustee

Your occupation (include employer and work phone #)

  Instrumentation/SCADA Foreman; Portland Water District;207-774-5961

List any civic organizations to which you belong

  Boy Scouts of America  

Note any prior experience knowledge, or abilities that you have which would contribute to the activities of the 
board/committee/commission  

  As a current member of this board, and with my work experience of 22 years in the water district, I feel I bring valuable insight and 
input to this boards work and mission.  

Have you previously served on a Town board/commission/committee? If so, please list the board/commission/committee 
and years of service:  

  Yes I currently sit, and have for the last two years as Water District Trustee

1. Do you have any questions about what the Board/Commission/Committee does or on its charge?  

  None at this time.  

2. Do you have any practical experience or formal education that would be relevant to the Board/Commission/Committee?

  See above  



2

3. Why would you like to be on the Board/Commission/Committee?

  To be a part of the process of assisting the water district , helping ensure the public voice is heard and taken into consideration, 
and supporting the water district in their work efforts to maintain safe drinking water.

4. Are you aware of the time involved and would you be able to attend most of the meetings?  

  Yes  

5. Do you have any conflict of interest that might involve either a direct financial gain or other gain?  

  No  

6. Do you have anything you would like to add?  

  Not at this time  
 

 






	ca a yes
	ca a Aug 3, 2015 min
	ca b yes
	ca b assessingscan0024
	ca c yes
	ca c town hall place
	1 ManagerLocationNoticeAugust82015
	Brunswick, Maine
	MEMORANDUM

	2 Brunswick Town Easement 07-23-15
	3 Easement Exhibit-Town Hall Place 2015
	4 Town Hall Place ULP
	5 Town Hall Place Gas Line Extention

	ca d yes
	CA D MMA grant for chairs
	ca e yes
	CA E mma grant Fire
	21 TOWN HALL PLACE
	23TUWWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORGU23T
	Town of Brunswick, Maine

	ca f yes
	ca f 2015 Grant MEMO ken
	corr
	Corrpend School 3471_001
	correspn Grace scan0021
	mr a yes
	mr a bench scan0026
	mr b yes
	mr b bike scan0027
	mr c no
	mr d yes
	mr d bda historical scan0028
	mr e yes
	MR e memo from frizzle
	mr f yes
	mr f 1 9_8_TC Thomas Point
	MR F 1 TPB Opening announcement 8_20ltr
	mr g no
	mr h yes
	MR H 2015 Tax Assessment -Memo
	89 yes
	89 magee scan0025
	90 yes
	90 FULL Memo BHS Boiler Replacement 090215
	91 yes
	91 FULL Memo Revaluation 090215
	92 yes
	92 a Memo River Road Culvert 090215
	92 b Grant for Culvert Sept 7
	93 yes
	93 applications water
	2015 Ivery D Water District
	2015 Moll Water District




